

Land-Based Wind Jobs and Economic Development Impact (JEDI) Model:

Installation and Use Guide for Windows/PC Users

For version released 10/30/2020

This document is a draft designed to accompany the beta version of the land-based wind JEDI model. The model and installation and use guide will be updated throughout the beta testing phase and upon final release of the model.

Table of Contents

Land-Based Wind JEDI Model Background Information3
Methodology Behind the Model
Entering Data and Running the Model4
Interpreting the Results5
Land-Based Wind JEDI Model Version Release 2020
Key Updates to the Land-Based Wind JEDI Model:6
Installation and Use the Land-Based Wind JEDI Model7
Step 1 - Download the JEDI Model Package7
Step 2 - Extract and Save the Folder to your Computer7
Step 3 - Install LandBOSSE
Step 4 – Open the JEDI Model
Step 5 – Run the JEDI Model
Step 6 – Continue through JEDI Model Steps13
Data Sources Used in the LBW JEDI Model - 2020
LandBOSSE
Property Tax Data
Landowner Lease Data
Operations & Maintenance Data19
Additional Data
JEDI Model Support

Land-Based Wind JEDI Model Background Information

The economic impacts from wind energy project development can be significant to both the rural counties and the state in which the project is located. The benefits that are generated by the expenditures, both during the construction and the operations phases of wind plants, depend on the extent to which those expenditures are spent locally, as well as the structure of the local and state economy. The Land-Based Wind Jobs and Economic Development Impact model (LBW JEDI model) is an easy-to-use tool that provides an approximation of the economic impacts to the local county and the state that can be generated from wind project development, during the construction phase of the project and throughout the 20 to 30 year life, or operating years, of the project.

Methodology Behind the Model

Using basic information about a wind project (at minimum the project's state, county, or region; the year of construction; and the size of the facility), the model calculates the project balance-of-plant costs using NREL's LandBOSSE Balance-of-Systems cost model. The model then calculated the number of jobs, income (i.e., wages and salary), and economic activity that will accrue to the state, county, or region being analyzed. To evaluate these impacts, input-output or multiplier analysis is used.

Input-output models were originally developed to trace supply linkages in the economy. For example, they show how purchases of wind turbines not only benefit turbine manufacturers, but also the fabricated metal industries and other businesses supplying inputs to those manufacturers. The benefits that are ultimately generated by expenditures for wind plants depend on the extent to which those expenditures are spent locally and the structure of the local economy. Consistent with the spending pattern and locationspecific economic structure (state, county, or region), different expenditures support a different level of employment, income, and output.

Input-output analysis is a method of evaluating and summing the impacts of a series of effects generated by an expenditure (i.e., input). To determine the total effect of developing a wind power plant, three impacts are examined for each expenditure. These include direct effect, indirect effect, and induced effect.

Direct effect: Direct effects are the on-site or immediate effects created by an expenditure. In constructing a wind plant, it refers to the on-site jobs of the contractors and crews hired to construct the plant. It also includes the jobs at the turbine manufacturing plants and the jobs at the tower and blade factories.

Indirect effect: Indirect effects refer to the increase in economic activity that occurs when a contractor, vendor or manufacturer receives payment for goods or services and in turn is able to pay others who support their business. For instance, this impact includes the banker who finances the contractor; the accountant who

keeps the contractor's books; and the steel mills and electrical manufacturers and other suppliers that provide the necessary materials.

Induced effect: Induced effects refer to the change in wealth and income that is induced by the spending of those persons directly and indirectly employed by the project. This would include spending on food, clothing, or day care by those directly or indirectly employed by the project, retail services, public transit, utilities, cars, oil, property & income taxes, medical services, and insurance, for example.

The sum of these three effects yields a total effect that results from a single expenditure. To accomplish this analysis at the state level, state-specific multipliers and personal expenditure patterns are used to derive the results. These state-by-state multipliers for employment, wage and salary income and output (economic activity), and personal expenditure patterns were adapted from the IMPLAN Professional model using year 2018 data (to be updated with new data in November 2020). The changes in expenditures from investments in developing wind power plants are matched with their appropriate multipliers for each sector affected by the change in expenditure. The JEDI model user does also have the ability to add in their own IMPLAN data for a specific location using the User Add-In Location sheet within the model.

Consistent with an analysis of this type and scope, the assumptions play an important role in influencing the results. Thus, to accommodate the greatest level of flexibility in user skill level and availability of specific detailed project information, the model is designed to incorporate model default values or new values entered by the user. The default values represent a reasonable expenditure pattern for constructing and operating a wind power plant in the United States and the share of expenditures spent locally. The default expenditure pattern is based on a review of numerous wind resource studies as well as the default values used for NREL's LandBOSSE model simulations.

Currently, not every project will follow this exact "default" pattern for expenditures. Project size, location, financing arrangements, and numerous site-specific factors influence the construction and operating costs. Similarly, the availability of local resources (including skilled labor and materials) and the availability of locally manufactured power plant components will have a significant effect on the costs and the economic benefits that accrue to the state or local region. To the extent the user has and can incorporate project-specific data and the share of spending that is expected to occur locally, the more localized the impact analysis will be.

Entering Data and Running the Model

The JEDI model is designed for all levels of users, requiring no experience with spreadsheets or background in economic modeling. The model includes instructions imbedded within the model in addition to this document which describes the installation process and basic use of the model. The installation of the JEDI model involves also installing NREL's LandBOSSE model through the installer that is included with the JEDI

model when downloaded from the NREL website. This process is described in detail in the Installation and Use section of this guide.

For those users with little or no experience with wind power plants or economic impact analysis, minimal inputs are required, such as the state in which the wind plant will be built, the year the plant will be built, the size of the plant and any available turbine information. The user can then choose to accept all project defaults or review and edit any defaults as desired. Regardless of the number of inputs changed in the model, the user must still proceed through the model and press each button to proceed to the next step to ensure that all calculations in the model are performed correctly.

For those users with more experience with wind power plants and/or economic impact analysis (i.e., those with more project-specific information on costs and expenditures, financing, taxes, and local share of spending, among others), project-specific values can be entered to override the default values.

Interpreting the Results

Regardless of the amount of project-specific data entered by the user, JEDI provides sufficient information to help users better understand the economic impacts associated with the project being analyzed. The model provides basic project information to identify the magnitude of the construction-related spending and ongoing operating and maintenance (O&M) expenditures, as well as the portion of local spending. As noted earlier, these outputs should not be interpreted as precise values. Instead, they should be used as an indication of the magnitude of the potential economic development impacts. The "local share" values – default or user modified – are determined in the model for each of the expenditures. Similarly, the model identifies local spending on debt and equity payments, property taxes and land lease payments.

In addition to the basic project information, the model provides analysis (divided into direct, indirect and induced impacts) of the local jobs, earnings, and output (economic activity) generated as a result of the project. This includes the one-time impacts from the construction phase, as well as the annual or ongoing impacts from the annual operations.

Once the analysis is complete, the user has several options for saving the data and results including printing the results, saving the model (using a different name), or copying the results into a spreadsheet format. The results are divided into separate categories for Construction Impacts and Operating Years Impacts and are broken into 4 categories: jobs, earnings, output, and value added. The Summary sheet of the JEDI model will also display four bar charts showing the results for the wind project being analyzed.

Land-Based Wind JEDI Model Version Release 2020

The Land-Based Wind Jobs and Economic Development Impact (JEDI) Model underwent a series of updates in the 2020 fiscal year. These updates, listed below, aim to keep the model on trend with the current land-based wind industry and increase the model's accuracy when analyzing wind plants throughout various regions of the country. The updates made to the land-based wind JEDI model in 2020 require specific steps to be followed in order for the model to run and for JEDI to calculate accurate costs for your project.

Please follow the steps in this document to correctly install and run the JEDI model.

Key Updates to the Land-Based Wind JEDI Model:

- Integration of the NREL LandBOSSE Balance-of-System Cost Model
 - The LandBOSSE model is a Python-based tool used for modeling the balance-of-system costs for land-based wind plants. This model has been fully integrated into the JEDI Microsoft Excel-based model, allowing the user to calculate and view LandBOSSE outputs through Excel. The integration of this model requires that the JEDI user installs LandBOSSE prior to using the JEDI model. Steps for this installation process are described below.
 - Information on the LandBOSSE Balance of System Cost Model can be found at <u>https://www.nrel.gov/docs/fy19osti/72201.pdf</u>
- Addition of state-specific land lease data
 - Data sourced from American Wind Energy Association WindIQ Database, as well as additional NREL literature review
- Addition of state-specific property tax data
 - Data sourced from American Wind Energy Association WindlQ Database, as well as additional NREL literature review
- Addition of regional, capacity-based curves to determine # of O&M jobs
 - Data from NREL's Workforce and Economic Development Considerations from the Operations and Maintenance of Wind Plants Report (M. Kotarbinski, NREL/TP-5000-76957), was used to develop job curves within JEDI that estimate the number of O&M jobs based on a wind plants region and capacity.
- Redesign of model layout and step-by-step format
 - The latest version of the land-based wind JEDI model includes a redesign of the model layout and function. The model now uses a step-by-step method requiring the user to press the appropriate buttons in Excel to run macros to proceed through the steps and properly run all calculations.

Installation and Use the Land-Based Wind JEDI Model

Step 1 - Download the JEDI Model Package

For the latest version of the land-based wind JEDI model, please visit the NREL website at the following link: <u>https://www.nrel.gov/analysis/jedi/wind.html</u>. Click on the Land-Based Wind JEDI Model "Download" button for Windows to download a .zip folder containing the JEDI Model and LandBOSSE installation package titled "JEDI Beta Windows.zip."

Step 2 - Extract and Save the Folder to your Computer

Once the download is complete, you will see the .zip folder in your computer's download folder. Please extract/decompress this folder and save the "unzipped" folder to your computer.

Right click on the .zip folder and click on the option to "Extract All..." This will bring up a new box allowing you to choose the destination where you would like to save this folder. This is the location that you will then go to in order to open the file and run JEDI.



15013 Denver West Parkway Golden, CO 80401 Phone 303-275-3000

🔸 🔄 📙 🖛	Extract	Downloads	_	
File Home Share View	Compressed Folder Tools			~ 🕐
Documents Pictures project_input_template Land Leas landbosse Music	e JEDI Models input Videos	Extract		×
← → ✓ ↑ 🖣 ← 🔋 Extract Co	mpressed (Zipped) Folders			٩
A Quick access Select a D	estination and Extract F	iles		(B
🔮 Documents 🛛 🔤 Files will be e	xtracted to this folder:			
Downloads C:\Users\am	enzel\Desktop		Browse	
► Pictures				
Desktop Show extra	acted files when complete			
JEDI Models				
Land Lease				
broject_inpu				
This PC				
network				
			Extract Can	cel
1 item 1 item selected 105 MB				

On your desktop (or wherever you chose to save your folders) you may have both the .zip folder and the "unzipped" folder. You can now delete the .zip folder and should keep the other folder titled "JEDI Beta Windows" in one location with all files contained.



Step 3 - Install LandBOSSE

Open the JEDI Beta Windows folder from the location where the folder was saved in Step 2. Double-click on the application titled "landbosse-runtime-0.9.9-x64.exe" to open the installer for LandBOSSE.

L	Share View	Manage	JEDI Beta Wii	ndows			-		×
Pinto Quick Copy Pa access	Cut Copy path aste	Move to •	X Delete ▼ ■ Rename	New folder	Proper	Ties ↓ Distory		Select all Select none Invert selecti	on
Clipb	oard	Orga	nize	New		Open		Select	
$\leftarrow \rightarrow \checkmark \uparrow$	› JEDI Beta Windo	DWS	✓ 🖸 Search JEDI Beta W					Vindows , P	
📌 Quick access	Name	^		Date modifie	d	Туре		Size	
Documents	🚽 🖳 jedi_c	lient.py		9/25/2020 3:3	2 PM	JetBrains PyCha	r	81	(B
	🕺 🖳 jedi-lk	ow-model-w2020.xlsm		9/29/2020 4:2	9 PM	Microsoft Excel	M	590 I	(B
- Downloads	🌋 👘 landb	osse-runtime-0.9.9-x64	4.exe	9/25/2020 3:3	2 PM	Application		107,994 H	(B
Pictures	A								
📃 Desktop									
JEDI Models			•						

After double clicking on this .exe file, an installer will open. Please follow the steps of the installer to complete the LandBOSSE installation (this can take up to 10 minutes.)

🕞 Setup - landbosse-runtime version 0.9.9	_		×
Ready to Install Setup is now ready to begin installing landbosse-runtime on your	computer.	(()	J
Click Install to continue with the installation.			
	Install	Cano	el

19		
Installing Please wait while Setup installs landbosse-runtime on your computer.		
Extracting files		
	Cancel	



Step 4 – Open the JEDI Model

After the LandBOSSE installation is complete, you can return to the JEDI Beta Windows folder and open the Excel file titled "jedi-lbw-model-w2020.xlsm." When the file opens, please opt to "Enable Content" to ensure the model runs all calculations.

📙 🛃 📕 🖛 JEDI Beta	Windows						_		×			
File Home Share	e View								^ 🕐			
Pin to Quick Copy Paste access	✓ Cut Image: Copy path Image: Paste shortcut	🖕 Move to ▾ 🛄 Copy to ▾	X Delete ▼ ■ Rename	New folder	Proper	ities <mark>⊘</mark> History	Se Se Se Inv	lect all lect none vert select	ion			
Clipboard	I	Orgai	nize	New		Open		Select				
← → · ↑ 📙 > JE	\leftarrow \rightarrow \checkmark \uparrow IEDI Beta Windows \checkmark											
	Name	^		Date modified	1	Туре	S	öize				
📌 Quick access				0.005.0000.0.0								
🛱 Documents 🖈	jedi_client.p	у		9/25/2020 3:3	2 PM	JetBrains PyCha	r	8	КВ			
	😫 jedi-Ibw-mo	del-w202 dsm		9/29/2020 4:2	9 PM	Microsoft Excel	M	590	KB			
Uownloads 🖈	🛃 landbosse-ru	untime-0.9 🖉 54	.exe	9/25/2020 3:33	2 PM	Application		107,994	КВ			
📰 Pictures 🛛 🖈												
📃 Desktop			•									
JEDI Models												



Step 5 – Run the JEDI Model

With the Excel-based model open, start on the tab titled "Step 1 – Project Information." Here you can change any of the basic and advanced inputs for your project. When you have finished altering your inputs on this page, please click the button "Proceed to Step 2 – Run LandBOSSE." This button will take your inputs and run a Python code for the LandBOSSE Balance-of-Systems cost model in the background.

You may have to wait a few minutes for the costs on the Step 2 sheet to recalculate.

Aut	oSave Off 📙 ∽ ~ マ	jedi-lbw-model-w2	2020.xls	m -	♀ Search						
File	Home Insert Page Layout Formulas	Data Revie	ew	View Developer	Help						
C8											
A	В	С	D	E	F		G	Н			
2	STEP 1 - Project Inform	ation		Optional							
3	BASIC INPUTS:			ADVANCED INPU	ITS:			WARNI			
4	Project Description			Site Information							
5	Project Name	project_1		Wind Shear Expor	nent		0.2				
6	Project Location (State)	CALIFORNIA		50-year Gust Velo	ocity (m/s)		59.5				
7	Project Location (Region)	West		Number of Access	s Roads		2				
8	Total Project Size (MW)	300		Number of Highw	ay Permits		10				
9	Number of Projects (included in Total Project S										
10	Number of Turbines	120		Percent of Roads	that will be constructed		33%				
11	Turking Information			Road width (ft)	-1		20				
12	Turbine Information	25		Fuel Cost (USD po	n) ar gall		1 5				
14	Hub Height (m)	80		Road Quality (0-1			0.6				
15	Rotor Diameter (m)	77		Road Length Add	er (m)		5000				
16	Turbine Spacing (times rotor diameter)	4		Crane Width (m) 11							
17	Row Spacing (times rotor diameter)	10									
18				Grid Connection							
19	Construction Information			Distance to Interd	connect (miles)		5				
20	Year of Construction	2020		Interconnect Volt	age (kV)		130				
21	Money Value (Dollar Year)	2020		Line Frequency (H	tz)		60				
22	Total Project Construction Time (months)	9		New Switchyard (y/n)	У					
23	Rate of Deliveries (turbines per week)	10		Combined Homer	un Trench Length to Substatio	n (km)	50				
24				Coundation 1.5							
25				Foundation Inform	nation (m)		2.20				
20				Rated Thrust (N)	i (iii)		2.30 5.89E+05				
	Descendes Stern 2. Cost Information			Receipe Dressor	(= /== 2)		101524				
20	Proceed to Step 2 - Cost Informati	on (Run		Nep Freetien Win	(n/mz) d Dolou Critical Hoight (m)		191521				
30	LandBOSSE)			Non-Erection Win	nd Delay Critical Speed (m/s)		10				
24	**************************************	ttor to un		Non Erection with	a belay childer opeca (III/5)	L					
31	LandBOSSE anytime changes are made to the	nis page.**		Development Cos	st Information						
•	START STEP 1 - Project Information	STEP 2 - Cost	Inform	ation STEP 3 - Ed	it Project De 🕂 :						
0											
Ŧ	오 밝 📄 🗎 💶	🤹 ڬ 🗴									

*Note – anytime changes are made to the inputs on the Step 1 page, this button must be clicked to re-run LandBOSSE.

Step 6 – Continue through JEDI Model Steps

After you have clicked the button to Proceed to Step 2 and LandBOSSE has successfully run, you should see new costs populated on the "Step 2 – Cost Information" tab. These costs are the outputs from the LandBOSSE model.



During this step, user inputs to the project cost information can be made for Total Equipment Cost (\$/kw), Operations and Maintenance Costs (\$/kW), and Money Value (Dollar Year.)

After any changes are made, please click the button to "Proceed to Step 3 – Edit Project Data." In Step 3, the LandBOSSE outputs are then re-grouped together into the corresponding categories used by JEDI.

	AutoSav	e Off		5					jedi-lbw-	model-w20	20.xlsm 👻		Q	Sea	rch
F	File	Home	Inse	ert	Pag	e Layou	ut F	ormulas	Data	Reviev	v View	Developer	Hel	р	
В	74	Ŧ	: :	×	~	f_x	=SUM(B71:B73)							
	Laboration		A					B	C	D	E	F		G	
79	Material	sonner Sub s and Se	rvices					\$991,93	\$1.60	3.6%					
76	Vehicles Site Maint	/Misc. Serv	/ices					\$725,841 \$283,078	\$1.21 \$0.47	2.6%	100%				
78	Fees, Per	mits, Licens	ses					\$141,539	\$0.24	0.5%	100%				
79	Utilities Insurance							\$566,156	\$0.94 \$9.07	2.0%	100%				
81	Fuel (mot	or vehicle g	asoline)					\$283,078	\$0.47	1.0%	0%				
82	Consuma	bles/Tools	and Misc	. Suppli	ies			\$1,840,007	\$3.07	6.6%	0%				
83	Replacem	ent Parts/E and Service	Equipment as Subtot:	t/ Spare al	Parts Inv	entory		\$16,124,561	\$26.87	58.2% 91.8%	0%				
85	Sales Ta	and Service (Materia	als & Eq	aı Juipme	ent Purc	hases)		\$1,289,948	\$2.15	4.7%	100%				
86	Other Ta	es/Paym	nents .				1	\$0	\$0.00	0.0%	100%				
87	Total O&	M Cost					1	\$27,689,948	\$46.15	100.0%					
88	Other Pa	rameter	e												
90	Financial	Paramet	ers								Local Shar	e 1			
91	Debt Fi	nancing					_								
92	Percentag	e financed					-	80%			0%				
93	Years lina Interest ra	nced (term) to						10							
95	Equity F	'inancingi	/Вераул	nent											
96	Percentag	e equity						20%]						
97	Individual I Corporate	nvestors (p	percent of	total e	quity) cauitu)		-	0%	1		100%				
99	Return on	equitu fann	ual interes	st rate)	equity)			12%	1		0/4				
100	Repaymen	it term (yea	rs)	,				10							
101	Taz Para	meters						***							
102	Local Pro Assessed	perty Lax H Value (ner	iate (avgin cent of co	nillage i onstruct	rate - \$r\$ tion costi	,000		\$10.00							
104		ande (per						10071							
105	Taxable V	alue						\$815,797,021							
106	Taxes Per	MV					-	\$15,693			100*/				
108	Local Sale	 s Tax Rate					•	7.25%			100%				
109	Land Lea	se Param	neters												
110	Land Leas	e Cost (\$/p	oer turbine	9				\$20,985							
112	I Jand Leas	r Turbines e (total cos	at)					\$5,036,400	•						
113	Lease Pay	ment recipi	o) ient (F = fa	armer/h	nousehold	i, O = Othe	er)	F			100%				
114	Payroll P	arameter	s				·								
115	Constru	ction Lat	or				¥:	oge per hour	Employ	yer Payroll (Jverhead				
117	Erection							\$52.14		37.6%					
118	Electrical							\$55.80		37.6%					
119	Managem	ent/Superv	ision					\$47.03	F 1	37.6%					
120	Field Salar	bor ies (technic	cians, oth	erì				strain ser ser sour state ser sour state ser sour service serv	Employ	ger Payroli C 37.6%	Jvernead				
122	Administr	ative		,				\$18.00		37.6%					
123	Managem	ent/Superv	ision					\$45.00		37.6%					
124 125					_										
126			6-1	То		Re	eturn To T	ор							
127		(Summary	Impact	ts	Project D	escription	and Cost							
128							Data								
129															
	• •		STEP	1 - Pr	roject li	nforma	tion	STEP 2	- Cost Inf	formation	STEP 3	- Edit Project D	ata	Sur	
Ē@	3														
		ρ	Ħ				•	w		a					
									-	and the second second					

On the Step 3 Edit Project Data page, you will see the balance of plant costs and project information that was inputted during the previous steps. On this sheet, you can edit local share percentages, financial parameters, and O&M costs as needed for your project.

After all inputs are completed, hit the "Go To Summary Impacts" button at the bottom of the sheet to view the summary of economic impacts for your project.

	AutoSav	re 💽		5			j	edi-Ibv	v-model-w20)20.xls	im -			R	Search
F	ile	Home	Inse	ert	Page Layout	Form	ulas	Data	a Reviev	N	View	Devel	oper	Help	1
E2	0	T		× .	/ €										
					√ <i>J</i> x		_		_					_	
				A			В		С		[)		E	F
1	Wind	d Farm ·	- Pro	oject	Data Summa	ary ba	ased (on U	ser modi	fica	tions t	to defa	ault v	/alues	
2	Project Year of	t Location f Construct	tion						CALIFOR	RNIA 2020					
4	Total P	roject Size	- Nan	neplat	e Capacity (MW)					600					
5	Numbe	er of Projec	cts (ind	cluded	in total)					1					Dist Data A Data Orange
7	Numbe	e Size (KVV) er of Turbin) Ies						2	240					and Summary Results
8	Installe	ed Project (Cost (\$/kW)					\$1	,360		\$1,280	witho	ut taxes	,
9	Annual	O&M Cost	t (\$/kV	V)		1			\$4	6.15		\$44.00	witho	ut taxes	
10	Total In	value (Doi istalled Pri	nar re oiect (ear) Cost					\$815 797	018					
12	Local	Spending	.,						\$126,369	859					
13	Total A	nnual Ope	ration	al Exp	enses				\$159,698	,095					Print Detailed Project Data
14	Loca	Operating Spending	and i n	vaintei	nance Costs				\$27,689	,948 929					
16	Other	Annual Co	osts						\$132,008	,146					
17	Loca	I Spending	g itu Den	mente					\$14,484	,318					
18	Pro	perty Taxes	nty Pay S	ments	•				\$8 157	\$U 970					Export All Project Data and Summary Results
20	Lan	d Lease							\$5,036	,400					to a new spreadsheet file
21															
22	Loca	l Econo	omic	Imp	acts - Summ	ary R	esult	;							
23							Job	s ষ	Earnings	1	Out	tput 💦	Valu	e Added	
24	Durin	g construct act Develo	nmen	period it and (Onsite Labor Imna	rts 🦷									
26	Co	nstruction	and In	ntercon	nection Labor	010	148		\$22.1						Return to Project Description
27	Co	nstruction	Relate	ed Ser	vices	1	7		\$0.8						and Cost Data
28	Turb	ial Sine and Si	unnly	Chain	Imnacte		155		\$22.8 \$29.4		\$2 so	3.5	5	23.0	
30	Indu	iced Impac	ts	onam	Impacto		328		\$22.6		\$6	4.5	š	40.7	
31	Tota	al Impacts					886		\$74.8		\$18	1.3	\$1	111.9	
32	Durin	a operatin	a veai	rs (anr	nual)										Poture to Stop 1 for Now
34	Ons	ite Labor I	mpact	ts	,	•	13		\$0.9		\$0).9	\$	\$0.9	LandBOSSE Simulation
35	Loca	al Revenue	and	Supply	Chain Impacts		59		\$4.0		\$2	0.7	\$	15.8	
36	Tota	iced impac al Impacts	cts				49		\$3.5 \$8.5		\$1 \$3	0.0 1.7	s	23.0	
38	Notes: E	Earnings and	l Outpu	it values	are millions of dollars	in year 21	018 dollar	s. Cons	truction and op	peratin	g jobs are	full-	•		
39	time equ	ivalent for a j	period	of one y	ear (1FTE = 2,080 ho	urs). Win "	d farm wo	rkers ind	cludes field teo	hnicia	ns, admini	stration an	d		
40	manage The ana	iment. Econi Ilvsis does no	omic im st inclui	ipacts i de impa	uring operating year. ots associated with sp	s repres endina d	ent impac of wind far	n "profi	boour from wind ts" and assume	s no t	operations ax abatem	rexpenditi ent unless	inoted.		
42	Totals m	iay not add u	ip due t	to indep	endent rounding. Re:	sults are l	based on	User mo	odifications to o	lefault	values.				
43															
	• •	S	STEP 2	2 - Cos	st Information	STEP	3 - Ed	t Proj	ect Data	Sur	nmaryR	esults	Use	er Add-ir	n Lo: 🕂 🗄 🖣
ĒŌ															
		0 =	1	-					**						
			1		24	w		A							

Data Sources Used in the LBW JEDI Model - 2020

LandBOSSE

The Land-Based Wind JEDI model was integrated with NREL's LandBOSSE Balance-of-Systems Cost model in 2020. LandBOSSE is NREL's land-based balance of system system's engineering model, which is a tool for modeling the balance of system costs of land-based wind plants. Balance of system costs, which are the costs to perform site preparation, construct foundations, install electrical infrastructure, construct the tower, etc. currently account for approximately 30% of the cost to install a land-based wind plant, so it is extremely important that these costs are accurate within the JEDI model.

Through the integration of LandBOSSE and JEDI, the accuracy of these balance of plant and construction costs is greatly improved, making the JEDI model more accurate and up to date with industry trends. An additional benefit is that the LandBOSSE model, which is typically run by Python, can now be accessed by using the Excel-based JEDI model.

Through this integration, the model takes user inputs and defaults from the JEDI model to run the LandBOSSE model after the user enters any inputs about a project on the Step 1 sheet of the JEDI model. After running LandBOSSE, the user will see all of the outputs from the LandBOSSE model on the Step 2 sheet of the JEDI model. These outputs are split into six modules: development, site preparation, foundation, erection, collection, grid connection, substation, and management. These outputs are then reconfigured to match the four input categories in the JEDI model: equipment costs, materials costs, labor costs, and development or other costs. In addition to LandBOSSE, data from the 2018 NREL cost of wind energy review is also used to calculate the equipment costs. This reconfiguration is done to group all costs together based on the industries that are affected, which ultimately is used in the back end of the JEDI model to run economic multipliers and determine the economic impacts. For a visual flowchart of the integration of these NREL models into the JEDI model, please refer to the Figure 1.

Figure 1. Integration of NREL Model Cost Outputs to LBW JEDI Model Cost Inputs



Property Tax Data

In 2020, the Land-Based Wind JEDI model was updated to include state-specific data for property tax payments. This dataset was collected through an NREL literature review, including information from American Wind Energy Association's WindIQ Database and Property Tax Treatment Report and was used to determine tax rate, assessment percentage, and an average value in dollars per megawatt of property taxes for each state. In JEDI property taxes for the wind farm are calculated first using the tax rate and assessment value, or if this information is not available for a particular state, then the model resorts to using the \$/MW value for that state. This \$/MW dataset is shown in Figure 2. Both of these updates improve the regionality of JEDI and allow the user to generate more accurate results for their state.



Figure 2. Average Property Taxes per State

Landowner Lease Data

In 2020, the Land-Based Wind JEDI model was updated to include state-specific data for landowner lease payments. This data was collected through an NREL literature review as well as from the American Wind Energy Association's Wind IQ database, to create an average dollar per megawatt value for each state. This value is then multiplied by the total project size to calculate the total cost of the landowner lease payments for the wind project in that state. Figure 3 shows the average value of these landowner lease payments for each state. In the JEDI model, the user is able to change this value if another value is known for the project. The user may also select the type of Lease Payment Recipient.

Figure 3. Average Land Lease Payments per State



Operations & Maintenance Data

An update made in 2020 to the Operations & Maintenance section of the Land-Based Wind JEDI model is the addition of regional, capacity-based curves to determine the number of O&M jobs created during the lifetime of a wind project. Data from another NREL report, the Workforce and Economic Development Considerations from the Operations and Maintenance of Wind Plants Report (M. Kotarbinski, NREL/TP-5000-76957) was used to develop these curves to more accurately reflect the difference in number of O&M jobs based on the plant's region and total capacity. This is important because the number of jobs does not increase linearly with the size of the plant. These regional curves can be seen in Figure 4.

Figure 4. Operations and Maintenance Employment by Region



Additional Data

In addition to these datasets and models developed by NREL, economic multiplier data from IMPLAN is also used in the JEDI model. Currently, the model is using 2018 IMPLAN data, but this is set to be updated to the 2020 IMPLAN data as soon as it is released.

JEDI Model Support

For questions about the Land-Based Wind JEDI model or any of the models in the JEDI suite, please email <u>JEDIsupport@nrel.gov</u>. Additionally, more information about the models can be found at <u>https://www.nrel.gov/analysis/jedi/</u>. These models are typically updated every year to reflect current industry data and trends, but feedback about the models and recommendations for improvement are greatly appreciated.